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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Rodef Shalom Temple stands on an elegant block in Pittsburgh's Shadyside district at
the corner of Fifth & Morewood Avenues, just east of the pre-World War I "Civic Center".
Designed in 1906 by Henry Hornbostel, this masonry building is composed of two parts: the
square sanctuary, measuring 92 feet on a side, and a rectangular vestibule projecting out
to Fifth Avenue. Broad lawns flank both sides of the building. The vestibule's elaborate terra
cotta banding, and grand arch divided into 3 sets of doors below and a large Syrian-arched
window above expresses the building's public function. The grand arch seems to respond to
the gently heaving arch of the vestibule's roof-line. Colorful terra cotta banding swirls over
the facade of the vestibule, giving it an oriental cast while at the same time evoking the
spirit of Louis H. Sullivan. The side walls of the sanctuary are relatively stark compared
to the rich and hierarchically more important vestibule facade. Each is ornamented only
by two color bands and pierced by two sets of triple lancet windows. The walls support a
squared dome of bright green tiles by Raphael Gustavino. Hornbostel achieves a magnificent
plasticity in articulating the dome as well as contrasting the colorful terra cotta and tiling
with thé cream colored brick.

Entrance into the building provides a tightly controlled spatial hierarchy: reception
by the embraeing walls next to the sidewalk, transition up the steps and into the vestibule
movement through the inner vestibule, and projection through 3 sets of embossed leather
doors into the exuberantly vaulted hall of the sanctuary. The focal point of the sanctuary
is the grand apsidal arch which cuts into the dome. The centerpiece is a fanciful gilded ark
framed by 2 sets of paired Corinthian columns. Higher up on the ark wall is an open choir
loft with a fine turn-of-the-century organ and easing.

The sanctuary is organized about four identical arches opening on to each wall. The
gallery arch above the entrance tunnels light into the sanctuary from the southern window
in the vestibule. The side wall arches are filled with triple lancet stained glass windows transferred
here from a mid nineteenth century temple. The dome rises above the rich sanctuary panelling
over the four giant wall arches on a squinch loading system. It is rusticated with acoustic
panelling and terminates about 50 feet from the floor in a large sky light of dazzling stained
glass. Four large bronze menorah chandeliers hang from the four corners of this sky light
to give measure to the vastness of the sanctuary volume.
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Two additions have been made to the Rodef Shalom Temple both are
tasteful and do not affect the integrety of the building has not
been affected. The first addition was made in 1938, at that time
attempts were made to match the decorative featunes of the
original building. The sccond addition was made in 1956.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
Rodef Shalom congregation was chartered in 1856 as the first permanent synagogue of

a Jewish community which had existed in Pittsburgh since pre-Revolutionary times. The

first temple was built in 1861 on Eighth Avenue in the downtown commercial district. In

1906 the congregation moved to the elegant Civic Center then being laid out on large esplanades
in Oakland. It remains one of the fine examples of Beaux-Arts planning. The temple became
famous from the broadcasted sermons of Rabbi Solomon B. Freehof in the 1930's and remains
one of the most pre-eminent Jewish centers in America.

Twe of Pittsburgh's foremost citizens were members of the congregation: Edgar J. Kaufmann,
the patron of Frank Lloyd Wright's "Fallingwater" and a prime sponsor of the Pittsburgh Renaissance,
and Jonas Salk who in 1953 discovered his polio vaccine at the University of Pittsburgh,

Aside from its congregational history, Rodef Shalom has architectural significance.
Hornbostel established the function of the building unequivocally in its brooding Beaus-Arts
massing and eastern motifs, without falling into stereotypes of Jewish architecture such as
minarets. But the temple stands out from the church architecture nonetheless. In the richness
of materials and subtlety of spatial articulation, Rodef Shalom is undoubtedly one of the
two or three first products of the Beaux-Arts movement in Pittsburgh. But its historical
and artistic significance by no means overshadows its present and future importance as home
to a strong and viable eongregation in an exciting ukban context.
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Beginning at a point on the northeast corner of Fifth Avenue and Devonshire Street; thence
northwardly along the easterly side of Devonshire Street a distance of 403.31 feet to the
line of Block 52-F, lot 92, now or late of Allen Berkman; thence eastwardly along the southerly
line of said lot a distance of 197. 57 feet to a point; thence northwardly along the easterly
line of said lot a distance of 20.79 feet to the line of Block 52F, lot 132, now or late of Leo
Sheedy; thence eastwardly along the southerly line of said lot a distance of 195.54 feet to
the westerly side of Morewood Avenue; thence southwardly a distance of 416.25 feet along
the westerly side of Morewood Avenue to the northwest corner of Morewood Avenue and
Fifth Avenue; thence westwardly a distance of 422.67 feet along the northerly side of Fifth

Avenue to the place of beginning.
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Allegheny Countx;/ZQ OE
PC: Steve Kibert NOV 5 1979
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

OA-501-A 10-66
Oct. 24, 1979

sussect: Rodef Shalom T"mple
Allegheny County

TO:

Lynn Beebe
National Register

FROM:
Susan M.Zacher

OHP, Pennsylvania

Enclos~d are the extra photographs you requested for the
Rodef Shalom Temple, Allegheny County. I hope the complete
the requirements.
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ENTRIES IN THE NATIONAL REGISTER

PENNSYLVANIA
STATE

Date Entered NUV 5 lg-{g

Name ) Location
Rodef Shalom Temple Pittsburgh

Allegheny County

Also Notified

Honorable H. John Heinz, III

Honorable Richard S. Schweiker State Historié Preservation Officer

Honorable William S. Moorhead Mr. Ed Weintraub
Penrnsylvania Historical and Museum
Commission
P.0. Box 1026
( NR Byers/bjr 11/6/79 Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17120

For further information, please call the National Register at (202)343-6401.
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